

Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority

Audit and Standards Committee

Wednesday, 18 January 2023,10:30

Minutes

Members Present: Mr A Amos, Mr D Boatright, Mr S Bowen, Mr B Brookes, Mr I D Hardiman, Mr AI Hardman, Mr M Hart, Mrs E Marshall, Ms N McVey

0256 Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Cllr B Clayton, Cllr R Morris and Cllr D Toynbee.

0257 Named Substitutes

There were no named substitutes.

0258 Declarations of Interest (if any)

There were no interests declared.

0259 Confirmation of Minutes

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

0260 External Audit Findings Report 2021/22

The External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, presented the Audit Findings Report for consideration and the Letter of Representation for approval.

Members were disappointed that the Audit had not been completed, which was mostly due to the incompletion of audit work on land and building valuations currently being undertaken.

The External Auditor advised that the Accounting entries for the valuations used were all correct, but there were additional questions about the valuations themselves.

[Cllr A Hardman entered the room at 10.40am].

Members therefore were not able to approve the Letter of Representation and the Audit Findings Report could only be noted.

RESOLVED:

i) that the Audit Findings Report be noted; and ii) that representations be made to CIPFA and the National Audit Office regarding the treatment of property valuations within the accounts.

0261 Statement Of Accounts 2021/22

The Treasurer presented the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts.

Unfortunately, due to the incompletion of the Audit, Members were unable to approve the Statement of Accounts. Members noted that it was hoped the final Accounts would be presented at the Authority meeting on 13 February 2023, subject to the completion of the valuations. If this was not possible, the next convenient meeting would be the Audit and Standards Committee meeting on 19 April 2023.

[Cllr D Boatright entered the meeting at 10.51am].

RESOLVED that the approval of the Statement of Accounts be deferred pending completion of the external audit.

0262 External Auditors' Annual Report 2021/22

The External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP presented the Auditors Annual Report 2021/22.

Members noted the financial pressures that will be faced over the coming years and that further savings plans would be required to address the structural budget gap and future budgetary pressures in particular with pay costs and inflation.

RESOLVED that the Auditors Annual Report 2021/22 from the External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, be noted.

0263 Internal Audit Draft Audit Plan 2023/24

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented the Draft Audit Plan for 2023/24.

Members were pleased to note that operational progress against the internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 will be closely monitored and the Head of

Internal Audit Shared Service will report the position to the Committee along with any exceptions identified during follow up work.

There was discussion relating to building maintenance and construction programmes. The Chief Fire Officer confirmed that a full survey looking at the carbon footprint at all locations would be built into the property schedule which would look at the energy usage. Members were also pleased to note that the build programme was accelerating despite a challenging financial background.

RESOLVED that the 2023/24 Draft Internal Audit Plan be approved.

0264 Internal Audit Progress Report

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented an update in regard to the delivery of the Internal Audit plan 2022/23.

Members were pleased to note that there were no high priority recommendations reported and robust management action plans had been agreed and were in place to address the findings from the review. Follow ups completed to date had not identified any material exceptions to report.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

0265 Contract Standing Orders

The Head of Legal Services presented amended Contract Standing Orders for approval.

It had been recommended that the threshold at which competitive quotes would be required be increased to £15,000 instead of £5,000. Members instead decided that this figure be increased to £20,000 as it would help facilitate the continued use of local suppliers wherever possible and create less work for the Service.

RESOLVED that the Fire Authority be recommended to approve the amended Contract Standing Orders set out in Appendix A.

0266 Equality & Gender Pay Gap Report 2021-2022 and Equality Objectives Progress Update

The Assistant Director of Prevention presented the Equality & Gender Pay Gap Report – 2021-2022 and a summary of progress against the Service's Equality Objectives 2021-2025 for Q1-Q2 2022-2023.

Although it was disappointing to note that there was a decrease of 1%

from last year of the number of operational female staff, it was positive to learn that an action plan for 2023-2025 was being developed to support recruitment and career progression to the most under-represented groups, most notably women into operational roles and also into more senior level positions. The new Inclusion & Organisational Development Manager would be supporting the delivery of these priorities.

Members were pleased with the continued support available to staff with with dyslexia and other types of neurodiversity and noted the fantastic outcomes where support and guidance had resulted in staff thriving in the workplace.

Members approved the Equality and Gender Pay Gap Report 2021-2022 for publication on the Service's website.

RESOLVED that:

i) the Equality & Gender Pay Gap Report 2021-2022 be approved for publication; and

ii) progress made against the Equality Objectives 2021-2025 for Q1–Q2 2022-2023 be noted.

0267 Update on the Prevention Cause of Concern

The Assistant Director of Prevention presented an update on the Service's progress against the Cause of Concern issued by His Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) in relation to Prevention Activity.

Members were informed that the Inspectorate revisited the Service between 22 and 24 November 2022 to talk with relevant people, assist with triangulating evidence and review the systems and processes in place following the issuing of the Cause of Concern. Following that there was a hot debrief on 2 December 2022 with the Chief Fire Officer and Inspectorate and although there was no clear indication that the Cause of Concern had been discharged, the Chief Fire Officer felt confident that this would be the case due to investing heavily in prevention activity.

It was hoped that the Service would receive the outcome of the revisit on Friday 20 January 2023 and Members would be informed as soon as possible.

RESOLVED that the update on the Service's progress against the Cause of Concern in relation to Prevention activity be noted.

0268 Update On Activities Of Women @HWfire group

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer presented an update on the work of Women@HWFire.

Members were pleased to note the work delivered by Woman@HWFire which demonstrated the organisation's commitment to supporting underrepresented groups within HWFRS.

RESOLVED that the activities of the Women@HWFire group since it was set up in 2019 be noted.

0269 Health and Safety Committee Update: April to June 2022 (Quarter 1)

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer presented the Health and Safety update for Quarter 1 on activities and items of significance.

Following a query, Members were pleased to note that the sickness levels within the Service were low in comparison with other authorities, despite the increase in respiratory conditions during the quarter.

RESOLVED that the following issues, in particular, be noted:

i) The involvement of the Service in Health and Safety initiatives;

ii) Health and Safety performance information recorded during April to June 2022 (Quarter 1); and

iii) Workforce Health & Wellbeing performance (Quarter 1).

0270 Health and Safety Committee Update: July to September 2022 (Quarter 2)

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer presented the Health & Safety update for Quarter 2 on activities and items of significance.

Members were pleased to note that following the resignation of the Health and Safety Advisor, a new Advisor had been recruited and would be starting later this month.

RESOLVED that the following issues, in particular, be noted:

i) The involvement of the Service in Health and Safety initiatives.

ii) Health and Safety performance information recorded during July to September 2022 (Quarter 2); and

iii) Workforce Health & Wellbeing performance.

The Meeting ended at: 12:17

Signed:..... Date:....

Chairman

Contract Standing Orders

1. Scope & Purpose / Introduction

- 1.1. These Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) are part of the Fire Authority's Constitution and must be applied in the procurement and disposal of goods, materials and services and in the execution of works.
- 1.2. The objective of these CSOs is to ensure that contracts are obtained on the most favourable terms, having due regard to quality, service and fitness for purpose. All procurement and disposal procedures must:
 - Achieve best value for money
 - Be consistent with the highest standards of integrity
 - Ensure fairness and transparency
 - Comply with all legal requirements
 - Support the Fire Authority's corporate aims and policies.

2. Value of Contracts

- 2.1. The value of the contract will determine the route to procurement. The Responsible Manager for the proposed contract must agree a procurement plan and process with the Procurement & Contracts Manager (and Head of Legal Services where the contract value exceeds £25,000).
- 2.2. The value of the contract is the total estimated value of the goods/services to be procured during the life of the contract. This must take into consideration the acquisition price (net of VAT) plus any other costs we will incur as part of the same contract e.g. on-going maintenance if this is included in the contract.
- 2.3. Where the duration of the contract is indeterminate the value should be taken to be the estimated value of the contract over a period of four years.
- 2.4. In some cases a contract may be legitimately divided into separate lots, e.g. goods and services offered as two separate contracts or contracts split geographically where this will aid service delivery or facilitate tendering by local contractors. However, contracts must not be artificially split to avoid the relevant threshold and in assessing the value of a contract all lots should be aggregated.
- 2.5. Where the total value for a purchase or disposal is within the values in the first column below, the award procedure in the second column must be followed <u>as a minimum</u>. Regard should always be had as to whether the chosen procurement route is likely to secure best value for the Authority proportionate to the sums involved.

Total Contract Value Exceeding	Award Procedure	Minimum Advertising Requirements
Above Public Contract Regulations 2015 threshold*	Either:	
*Currently £177,897 (exc.VAT)	(a) Full Public Contract Regulation compliant tender process or	Publish on UK e- notification service AND Publish on Authority website as required by the Transparency Code but not prior to publication UK r- notification service;
	(b) Public Contract compliant Framework	
£50,000 to Public Contract Regulations threshold	Either:	
	 (a) formal <u>open</u> tenders, or (b) invite tenders from a minimum 3 <u>select</u> tenderers where the CFO is satisfied, having regard to the nature of the contract, that restricting the number of tenderers will not disadvantage the Authority 	Open tenders over £25,000 must be published on Contracts Finder and on Authority website as required by the Transparency Code
£20,000 to £49,999	Either: (a) Minimum 3 written quotations; or (b) tender (as above)	
Below £20,000	One or more written quotations to be obtained.	

2.6. The terms and conditions of all contracts over £25,000 must first be approved by Legal Services). It will therefore be necessary for the documentation to be

approved by Legal Services before the invitation to tender or request for quotes is sent out.

3. Exceptions to the Award Procedures

- 3.1. A contract that is below the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 threshold may be entered into on behalf of the Authority other than in accordance with Standing Order 2 (above) in the following circumstances and only with the prior approval of the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive or nominated responsible officer:
 - (a) Where the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a particular supplier for any of the following reasons:—
 - (i) goods, materials or services are of a unique or specialised nature;
 - (ii) competition is absent for technical reasons;
 - (iii) the protection of exclusive rights, including intellectual property rights;

but only, where no reasonable alternative or substitute exists and the absence of competition is not the result of an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the procurement;

- (b) Where the supply of goods, materials or services are similar to or compatible with an existing provision so as to render only one source of supply appropriate. Special care must be taken and the Head of Legal Services must be consulted where the aggregate of the original contract value and any subsequent contracts exceeds the Public Contract Regulations threshold.
- (c) Where the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive is satisfied that for reasons of extreme urgency brought about by events unforeseeable by the authority, the time limits for the relevant procurement procedures cannot be complied with. The circumstances invoked to justify extreme urgency must not in any event be attributable to the contracting authority
- (d) For the supply of used or second-hand goods or materials where the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive is satisfied that the market for such goods or materials demonstrate good value and is such that it would be unreasonable to tender or where the time required to tender would lead to loss of opportunity to purchase a used or second-hand item.
- (e) For the supply of goods, materials or services in any other circumstances where the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive is satisfied that there are proper service reasons for not tendering and that there would be no financial disadvantage to the Fire Authority as a result.
- (g) Where the Fire Authority considers that there are special circumstances justifying the waiving of Standing Orders and authorises such waiver by resolution.
- (h) Where procurement is undertaken through a Framework Agreement negotiated by another organisation and approved by the Head of Legal Services
- (i) For purchase or sale of goods by public auction.
- (j) Where, despite observing the procurement process as laid out in this document, due to market or other conditions, no tenders or no suitable tenders have been

submitted and provided that the initial conditions of the contract are not substantially altered. [Where the contract is above the threshold in the Public Contract Regulations additional restrictions apply]

- (k) Where procurement is carried out in collaboration with another organisation and the procurement rules of that other organisation have been followed, subject to approval of the Head of Legal Services
- (I) Where the Police & Crime Commissioner procures property related services or works on behalf of the Authority and has complied with procurement procedures approved by the Head of Legal Services
- 3.2. The responsible officer shall complete an 'Officer Delegated Decision' record with reasons and explanations in respect of all contracts made in accordance with Standing Order No. 3. This shall be recorded in the Contracts Register and published on the Authority's website.

4. Framework Agreements

- 4.1. A Framework Agreement is an arrangement whereby the Fire Authority can enter into a contract known as a "call-off contract" direct with a supplier but under the auspices of an agreement that has been entered into by another organisation and which has already complied with the EU procurement requirements.
- 4.2. The specification of the contract must be determined prior to identification of a framework or supplier(s) who are part of a framework agreement.
- 4.3. A call-off contract from a framework agreement can be obtained either by direct award or mini-competition depending on the terms of the Framework Agreement. In order to use a direct award under a framework the ordering officer must be able to justify how this gives the best outcome for the Fire Authority. Where a mini-competition is conducted in accordance with the tender procedure it will be subject to the terms of the Framework.

5. Responsibilities

- 5.1. Before seeking any quotes, tenders or awarding a contract, the Responsible Manager must:
 - ensure they have all appropriate authorisations and approvals on file (see Scheme of Delegations);
 - ensure there is sufficient budgetary provision;
 - seek all necessary legal, procurement, financial, risk management and technical advice;
 - provide a full specification before entering any procurement process;
 - agree a procurement plan and process with the Procurement & Contracts Manager (and Head of Legal Services where the contract value exceeds £25,000);
 - ensure that appropriate maintenance regimes for equipment purchased are put in place. When evaluating tenders or bids received, consideration must be given the

whole life costs of the contract e.g. maintenance arrangements and any residual valuations;

- complete any investigations and/or risk assessments necessary to discharge the Service's duties under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and subsequent regulations or approved codes of practice;
- Complete all appropriate data impact assessments and/or equalities impact assessments in respect of the services to be provided or works to be procured.
- confirm the appropriateness of the suppliers asked to quote or to tender. Responsible Managers should take reasonable care in supplier selection and should ask for reasonable supporting information commensurate with the value/risk of the procurement. Appendix A contains a list of example information that the ordering officer may consider in assessing suppliers. Where potential suppliers are picked from a select list or register, the ordering officer should confirm with the compiler that suppliers have submitted satisfactory supporting information commensurate with the value/risk of the procurement;
- ensure written records are kept in relation to any pre-tender or quotation enquiries, including notes of telephone conversations and/or meetings with potential suppliers to be filed in the central repository /contract file (SharePoint);
- avoid any suggestion of impropriety and ensure any offers of gifts or hospitality from potential suppliers are declined and any personal interests have been declared in accordance with as in SO 13 (Compliance/Probity). The Contract Manager should also ensure that they comply with SO13
- provide details of all contracts valued over £5,000 to the Procurement and Contracts Manager for inclusion in the Contracts Register
- where the contract value exceeds £25,000 ensure that an Officer Delegated Decision record is completed and sent to Committee Services for publication on the Authority's website
- monitor and review the performance of the contract following award.

6. Contracts Register

- 6.1. The Contracts Register shall be maintained by the Procurement & Contracts Manager or other nominated officer and shall contain a record of:
 - All contracts entered into by the Authority valued over £20,000
 - any action, statements of reasons and exceptions made under Sections 3 (Exceptions), 7 (Pre-tender / quotation enquiries), 9 (Submission, Receipt and Opening Tenders), 10 (Post Tender Negotiation), and 11 (Evaluation/Award of Contract) of these standing orders;
 - any contracting decision and the reason for it;
 - any information supplemental to the contract; and
 - any conversations and meetings at any stage of the procurement process.
- 6.2. All contracts and relevant correspondence and records shall be retained in the Contracts Register for at least 6 years after the contract comes to an end. If made as a deed / under seal they must be kept for at least 12 years after the contract comes to an end.

7. Pre tender/quotation enquiries

- 7.1. Enquiries of potential contractors in advance of a procurement exercise may be undertaken to prepare the marketplace for a tender and/or to assist the Authority to better understand what the market is able to provide to meet the outcome the Authority is trying to achieve. Such consultation with potential suppliers may be made in general terms and:
 - no information shall be disclosed to one contractor which is not then disclosed to all those of whom enquiries are made
 - no contractor shall be led to believe that the information they offer will necessarily lead to them being invited to tender, submit a quotation or to be awarded the contract
 - technical advice on the preparation of an invitation to tender or quotation must not be sought or accepted from anyone who may have a commercial interest in bidding for the contract as this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential tenderers and distort competition
 - a written record, including notes of telephone conversations and/or meetings held with potential suppliers and the responses and names of all individuals spoken to or present shall be kept in a central file maintained by the Procurement & Contracts Manager

8. Invitations to Tender

- 8.1. Contracts above the Public Contract Regulations threshold require specific information to be included with invitations to tender and such requirements must be followed. When inviting tenders for below threshold contracts, the Contract Manager/Ordering Officer shall, as a minimum, supply the Tenderers with:
 - An accurate specification or other description of the goods, materials works or services including copies of any relevant drawings or maps.
 - All tenderers invited to tender or quote must be issued with the same information at the same time and subject to the same conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same basis
 - The invitation to tender or to submit a quotation must state that the Authority is not bound to accept any quote or tender.
 - Instructions as to the manner in which any tender or quotation is to be submitted, including dates and times by which the tender must be returned.
 - All invitations to tender shall state that any tender received after the date and time stipulated in the invitation to tender may be rejected and not considered.
 - An outline of how any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted tenders are to be dealt with. In particular, whether the overall price prevails over the rates of the tender or vice versa.
 - Details of the Authority's the terms and conditions of the contract that have been approved by the Head of Legal Services.
 - The invitation to tender must include a form of tender and instructions to tenderers including the requirement to complete a certificate relating to non-collusion
 - Details of any additional or supporting documents that are required such as those listed in Appendix A of this document (include Whistleblowing, Ethical Framework, etc.).

9. Submission, Receipt and Opening of Tenders

9.1. Potential tenderers must be given an adequate period to prepare depending on complexity / urgency. The Public Contract Regulations lay down specific time periods which must be followed in the case of procurements above the relevant threshold. For below threshold contracts the period should normally be a minimum of 4 weeks.

- 9.2. All tenders should normally be returned through the electronic tendering portal approved by the Head of Legal Services and which is designed to ensure the integrity and secrecy of tenders received. Emails and/or faxes cannot be accepted and must be rejected.
- 9.3. Once the deadline has passed the Procurement & Contracts Manager shall ensure there is a record of all tenders received and the amounts thereof and then provide the tender documents to the ordering officer / contract manager for assessment.
- 9.4. The Head of Legal Services may at his or her absolute discretion permit consideration of a tender submitted after the deadline has passed, provided:
 - (a) it is in the best financial interests of the Fire Authority to do so;
 - (b) they are satisfied that the tenderer has not secured an advantage over other tenderers; and
 - (c) the decision to admit the tender is taken before the remaining tenders are opened. A record of these tenders and the discretion exercised under this Standing Order must be kept in the Contracts Register.
- 9.5. If for technical reasons tenders are required to be returned by hard copy these– should be returned to the Head of Legal Services

10. Post Tender Negotiations

- 10.1. The Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive or nominated officer (ordering officer/contract manager) shall be empowered to accept the most economically advantageous/favourable tender received.
- 10.2. Where no tender meets the Authority's exact requirements, whether because the value of the tender exceeds the approved budget, the goods are not as required or for any other reason,
- 10.3. the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive or nominated officer may negotiate with the tenderer submitting the most economically advantageous/favourable tender to obtain improvements in terms of price, delivery or content unless the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive considers in all the circumstances that all those persons who originally submitted a tender for the contract should all be given an opportunity to re-tender.. However, such negotiation is the exception rather than the rule and the Head of Legal Services must be consulted prior to any negotiation. Where post tender negotiation results in fundamental change to specification or contract terms the contract must not be awarded but re-tendered,
- 10.4. A written record shall be kept of all negotiations including notes of meetings and names of those present and file in the central contract file.

11. Evaluation /Award of Contract

- 11.1. Quotations and tenders must be evaluated and awarded in accordance with objective award criteria. The result must award the contract to the tender that achieves the highest score in the objective assessment.
- 11.2. Ordering officers / contract managers must ensure that:
 - submitted tender prices are compared with any pre-tender estimates and any discrepancies are examined and resolved;
 - arithmetic in compliant tenders is checked; and
 - a record is retained of the evaluation undertaken (for 6 years after expiration of contract)
- 11.3. All contracts must be in writing, either in terms of a formal legal agreement over £25,000and/or a purchase order clearly indicating the nature and quantity of the work or service required, the price and any terms or conditions as to payment. Details of all orders must be entered and authorised on the Finance system.
- 11.4. The Head of Legal Services must sign all contracts over £25,000. Contracts below £25,000 may be signed by an Area Commander or Head of Service.

12. Following Award of Contract

- 12.1. The details of any contract awarded over £25,000 must be published on Contracts Finder no later than 90 calendar days after the contract award date. All contracts over £20,000 must be published on the Authority's website on a quarterly basis.
- 12.2. Any decision to award a contract over the value of £100,000 must also be published on the Authority's website under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, which requires the decision maker to set out the reasons for their decision and any alternative options that were considered but rejected. A record of Officer delegated decisions should be completed for this purpose.
- 12.3. Contracts above Public Contract Regulation thresholds cannot be awarded until after the mandatory standstill period. In these cases a standstill notice must to be sent to all tenderers and any candidates.
- 12.4. Should an award of a contract be challenged, the contract must not be awarded and the Head of Legal Services must be notified.

13. Compliance / Probity

13.1. The CSOs aim to protect staff against allegations of impropriety and therefore, all staff and any agents or consultants acting on their behalf must fully comply with these CSOs. All staff must also comply with any guidance and instructions regarding contractual arrangements as issued by the Head of Legal Services, the Director of Finance or the Procurement & Contracts Manager. A failure to comply may result in disciplinary action being taken.

- 13.2. Staff must be transparent, objective and non-discriminatory in all procurement activities and must not deliberately mislead suppliers. Commercial information obtained from suppliers, particularly pricing must be kept confidential and cannot be released to third parties without the prior approval of the supplier. However, there are various exceptions including requests under FOIA and publication of award notices.
- 13.3. The values and behaviours described in the Employee Code of Conduct and the Fire and Rescue Service Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy shall apply to all staff entering into and developing contracts. In addition, all staff must comply with the Register of Staff Interests Policy and register any interest they have in a contract or proposed contract with the Fire Authority, whether or not it is something they are dealing with personally. Staff must not invite any gift or reward in respect of the award or performance of a contract and must ensure that any offers of gifts and/or hospitality that are made by suppliers or potential suppliers are declined and registered in accordance with the Employee Code of Conduct and the Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy.

14. Consultants

14.1. The appointment of external consultants or architects must itself comply with Contract Procedure Rules. Subject to SO. 3.1(k) and (l) above, where external consultants or architects procure tenders on the Authority's behalf they must comply with Contract Procedure Rules as though it were being done in-house.

15. Fire Authority as a Supplier

15.1. The Director of Finance and Head of Legal Services must be consulted prior to contemplation of any contracts for the Authority to undertake work or provide services to other organisations.

16. Disposal of Assets

16.1. Any assets to be disposed of by the Authority to be shall be disposed of by whatever means is most likely to secure the best value for the Authority having regard to the nature and value of the assets concerned and shall first be approved by the Director of Finance and Head of Legal Services